
United Nat ions 

GENE RAL 
ASSEM BLY 
THIRTY-SECO:'IID SESSION 

Ofli.cial Records • 

SECOND COMMITI'EE 
13th meeting 

held on 
Wednesday, 12 October 1977 

at 10 . 30 a.m. 
New York 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 13th MEETING 

Chairman: Mr. JANKOWITSCH (Austria) 

later: Mr. OLIVERI- LOPEZ (Argentina) 

CONTENTS 

GENERAL DEBATE (continued) 

• This record Is )Ubject to cot~cction . Correchons should be incorporated in a copy of 
the record and should be sent within one week o{ rht dGtt of publiCGrion to the Chref, 
Official Records Edit111g Section, room A·JS50. 

Corrcc trons will be rssued shortly after r.he end of r.he session. in a separate fascicle for 
each CommrHee. 

77-57041 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/C. 2/32/SR.l3 
17 October 1977 
ENGLISH 
ORIGINAL: FRENCH 

I··· 



A/C.2/32/SR.l3 
English 
Page 2 

The meetinE was called to order at 10.40 a.m. 

GENERAL DEBATE (continued) 

l. l\1r. ALBORNOZ (Ecuador) Eaid that the main role of the United Nations was to 
· enable the nations of the WOl'ld to make contact and to open a dialogue with a 

genuine will to make concessions and reach agreement, particularly in the economic 
field, with a view to reducirg tension and establishing the new international 
economic order so eagerly aw~:d ted. 

2. It must be acknowledged, however, that the will to reach agreement and to find 
solutions was still lacking in both developed and developing countries. The latter 
still had differences of opinion to overcome, even though they had managed to unify 
their position within the Group of 77, while the former let slip, year after year, 
the opportunity to find solutions to the problems, injustices and inequities from 
which the developing world suffered and which would be exacerbated. 

3. It was disappointing to note, at the conclusion of the resumed thirty-first 
session of the General Assembly, that almost no progress had been made in the 
implementation of the measures provided to accelerate the establishment of the new 
international economic order, The results obtained from the Earth-South dialogue 
were and there was no hope of settling fundamental problems with the help 
of retrograde methods which attempted to maintain an economic order which the 
majority of mankind deemed unjust. As the Secretary-General had pointed out in his 
Report on the lilork of the Organization, failure to negotiate and fail~re to find a 
solution at the present time would quite simply be tantamount to regression. It 
was the cal will of the developed countries and their desire to negotiate 
which was called in question the solution of the serious problems fac.ing Ute 
developing world required global and sustained action and determined international 
economic co-operation which 'vould include practical measures. 

4. The developed countries had accepted the idea of a common fund under the 
Integrated Programme for Comnodities. They must now pledge themselves to ensure 
the success of the negotiati•)ns which were to begin at the end of November to 
decide on the detailed operation of the fund, in accordance with the objectives set 
out in UNCTAD resolution 93 (IV). 

5. Moreover, questions of ?riority interest to the developing countries -
protection of their purchasi1g power and of their export earnings, access to markets 
markets and technology, acquisition of guarantees of more equitable and fairer 
treatment for their products under the generalized system of preferences and 
multilateral trade negotiati:ms, and alleviation of their external debt - must be 
the subject of intensified negotiations in the United Nations system, which was the 
appropriate forum for dealing with world-wide questions linked to the establishment 
of the new international economic order. In that connexion, the Government of 
Ecuador wished to reaffirm its strong support for the principle that the primary 
function of the General Assembly, as a legislative organ, was to guide 

I ... 



A/C. 2/ 32/SR .13 
English 
Page 3 

(Mr. Albornoz, Ecuador) 

international relations, provide the necessary directives and permit direct 
negotiations among countries, as the Ministers for Foreign Affairs of the Group 
of 77 had indicated in their declaration of 29 September 1977. 

6. His delegation believed that during the current session it was important to 
determine which United Nations body should continue the over-all process of 
negotiation relating to the new international economic order, in both the short 
and the long term, systematically and with the necessary technical support. The 
work of that body should be conducted quite independently and at a high political 
level so that it would be able to consider proposals linked to the essential 
restructuring of the international economic system. 

1. He joined the representative of Peru in welcoming the fact that the 
United States had begun to participate in the commodity price stabilization 
machinery for sugar, coffee and tin and that it was considering doing so for rubber 
and copper. The negotiations which had started on sugar and bananas for the 
preparation of the necessary instruments had not received the support of the 
industrialized countries and his delegation felt that the international community 
should be concerned over that situation. 

8. After several years of technical analysis, the time had come to take a 
political decision. All countries, large and small, powerful and weak, must 
participate in such a decision since no one of them alone was capable of resolving 
world economic problems. At the present time, it was unthinkable that the 
resources of the third world could continue to be exploited for the sole benefit 
of the rich countries. The developing countries were therefore directing their 
efforts towards planning their economies with a view to promoting the well-being 
of their population and thus helping to ensure peace on earth. 

9. For its part, Ecuador based its development process on programming oriented 
towards the rational exploitation and utilization of its natural and human 
resources. Its efforts focused on agrarian reform, principally the modernization 
of agriculture and increased agricultural production and productivity, and on the 
industrial sector. As part of the process of integrating the Andean subregion, 
it had succeeded in planning i;he development of industry in such a way as to 
promote manufacturing, engineering and metallurgical production. I.Joreover, the 
Government of Ecuador was allocating the limited resources available to it to 
various branches of productive activities and to the establishment of a physical 
and social infrastructure: in five years, the economic activity of the country 
had quintupled. The essential goal it had set itself was to improve the quality 
of life of the population proportionately. 

10. Those efforts had been partly supplemented by aid from UNDP and the 
specialized agencies in the United Nations system, which should continue to act 
with the flexibility and dynamism required by national development plans. The 
national effort, however, had been impeded by the effects of the world economic 
cri s, one of the principal elements of which, inflation, should engage the 

I . .. 



A/C.2/32/SH.l3 
.ti:nglish 

4 

attention of the international cow.munity. His delegation therefore reiterated the 
proposal of the five member:; of the Andean Group that a •.wrld cvnference on 
inflation should be convened and it reaffirmed that world inflation was 
attributable not to the price of oil but on the one hand, to the chronic enormous 
deficit in the budgets of the great Powers owing, in part, to the 
considerable sums which the:r allocated to the arms race and, on the other, to the 
deficit in their balance of payments. 

11. Referring to the probl<:m of the inequity in the terms of trade for the 
developing countries, he po:.nted to the discriminatory nature of the measures 
adopted by certain large cmmtries which had an exaggerated influence on the 
economies of much weaker cmmtries, Such, for example, was the case of the 
customs tariffs which the United States imposed on Ecuador and Venezuela. 

12. Internati anal assistance should be given to all countries which needed it and 
Ecuador reaffirmed its oppo~:ition to any proposal or manoeuvre designed to reduce 
the aid granted to the middle-level developing countries, since that would be 
tantamount to practi a ~:ort of technical neo-·colonialism. 

13. The question of the trEnsfer of resources was another area of particular 
concern for the developing countries in view of the fact that the target of 
1 per cent of the gross national product set in the International Development 
Strategy vras far from being achieved and the decline in the real value of official 
development assistance had cnly aggravated the indebtedness of the majority of the 
developing countries. The ceveloped countries should therefore undertake to 
accelerate the transfer of real resources to the developing countries on a 
f'oreseeable, steady and continuous basis and to alleviate the problem of the 
indebtedness of the developing countries. 

Since technical co-operation aroong d(::veloping countries was an integral part 
of over-all co-operation for the purposes of development, any strategy in that 
area required the support of the international commlmi ty. His delegation therefore 
attached particular importance to the forthcoming Conference on Technical 
Co-operation among Developing Countries and hoped that the preparatory '.-TOrk for 
that Conference vrould receive the necessary finan.:::ial support. The United Nations 
Conference on Science and 'I'Echnolog<J for Development also deserved strong support 
since t.he scientific and technological r-ap b'~tween developed and developing 
countries was one of the principal caus of the economic disparities in the world. 

15. If the of the international community were to be attained and a nevr 
international world :...•rder established, the relevant organs of the United Nations 
system would have to be strengthened, particularly the Economic a.<'1d Social Council. 

1 s impatience and sce_r;ticism were nounting, a:1d the time for dilatory 
resolutions was past. It was the industrialized countries 1 turn to play, to 
shovr themselves -.-.rilling, as the developing countries were, to participate vrithin 
the United .i:Jations :Ln a dial:-Jgue the ultimate aim of which should be to increase 
the incol!le of tht: g countries' populGtions and to satisfy their basic 
needs. 

I . .. 



A I c . ;~ I 32 13 

Mr. CHIRILA (Romania) said that the results of implementation of the 
rreasures recommended at the sixth and seventh sessions of the General 
Assembly and in the International Development Strategy had fallen far short of 
expectations. That situation was a measure of the important task before the 
current session, which was to adopt urgent measures to break the deadlock and 
attain the cti ves of the new international economic order. 

The first step was to demonstrate that building the new conomic order wm3 
essentially the political undertaking of creating a new frame of refen:nce for 
the purpose of the less developed countries the machinery to 
organize their development independently. That undert would require 
sustained national effort, the allocation of a growing proportion of national 
income to investment, and the employment of structures and policies which would 
integrate the nation into economic life and bring about social ,justice. 

18. I'1oreover, the international community would have to take practical measures 
to help the developing countries and not be content with partial reforms or 
limited concessions within the existing system, which could only perpetuate 
under-development. 

TI1e second step~ therefore, was to devise ways and means for attaining 
the objectives of the new international economic order. ~'Tegotiations should 
take within the framework of the United Nations since it was 
imperative that, given problems of such magnitude, every State should have a 
voice and be able to express its opinions on an equal footing. The new 
international economic order was a complex objective requiring for its 
attainment a global process in which the interdependence of individual 
was taken into account so that progress !!'ade in som.e spheres i.JOl:tld not be at 
the expense of other, equally important, ones. 

20. His delegation was determined to do its utmost to new to the 
negotiations with a view to facilitating the adoption of practical measures 
to establish new international relations to replace the exist economic 
system from which a limited number of countries benefited. 

21. What was needed was to detenlline what measures were needed S 1:tccessfully 
to complete the action undertaken in all spheres ~- trade, financin[';, 
access to science and technology - and to mal<:e the al arrangement~' 

to intensify negotiations on such matters as the development of 
agriculture, industry and transport, the protection of the enviromnent, enere;y 
and the ation of the wealth of the seas and oceans. 

22. The status f the preparations for the Unit d ilations C~cmference on 
Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries should be asce:J.'tained aDd 
care taken, in the preparations for the United Nations Conference on Science 
and Technology for Development, to ensure that the Conference '1-TO'~lld be in 

I 
I 



A/C.2/32/SR.l3 
English 
Page 6 

(Hr. Chirila, Romania) 

position to establish practical methods of ensuring the developing countries 1 

access to technology and gi·ring them the necessary research infrastructure. 

23. It was essential that :~11 measures agreed upon should be in the form of 
firm commitments voluntaril;r undertaken by all States. To that end, it would 
probably be wise to draw up a legal instrument, in the form of a code of 
international economic rela·;ions, which would contain a coherent set of rules 
and policies for establishing the new economic order, together with machinery 
for ensuring that commi tmen·;s were met. The adoption of such a code would 
provide tangible evidence o ~ the willingness of all States to act decisively to 
achieve the goal of development. 

24. The strengthening of the structures of the United Nations, particularly the 
restructuring of the econom:Lc and social sectors, deserved special attention. 
In that connexion, his dele1~ation supported the proposal that one General 
Assembly session in 1980 should be devoted to appraising the progress made by 
all United Nations organs towards building the new international economic order~ 
adopting measures to promot(~ the advancement of developing countries and 
preparing the new international development strategy. Similarly, it might be 
advisable to convene a high··level meeting of developing countries, since success 
in the effort to build the new international economic order depended largely on 
unity and solidarity among ·;hose countries. 

25. His delegation was fir1uy convinced that practical progress towards the 
new international economic order was possible provided novel forms of co-operation 
among groups of States whos<: interests were not always easily reconciled were 
devised. 

26. Mr. Jv!ESTIRI (Tunisia) ::aid that it was the Committee's duty to give new 
impetus to the North-South dialogue, despite the disappointment created by the 
obviously inadequate result:> of all negotiations so far. Some progress had, 
of course, been achieved an<l the third world had undoubtedly gained some 
benefit from the economic recovery which had started in a number of developed 
countries. All of that, hmrever, was only a partial, and possibly temporary, 
change, and fundamental problems, where they had not been aggravated, remained 
as acute as ever, thus hampE:ring the success of the developing countries' 
efforts. It should be stre::sed, in that connexion, that while measures to 
resolve specific problems ~.ght vary from one country to the next, structural 
development problems could not be surmounted by differentiating between goals 
and measures by reference to an entirely artificial classification of countries. 

27. International trade wa:; going through a particularly difficult period. 
That applied particularly to the developing countries, on account of the 
many restrictive measures that had recently been taken, which had had an extremely 

I . .. 



A/C.2/32/SR. 
English 

7 

damaging influence on their earnings, their terms of trade, their 
employment policy and their development goals, all of which was bound to 
discourage their drive towards industrialization. 

28. Moreover, progress in implementing measures to compensate partly for 
structural inadequacies was slow, if not non-existent. 'rhat, for 
the case with official development assistance, which was steadily 
as a of GHP in most developed count s. 

29. If those fundamental were to be solved, the North-South dialogue 
should be reoriented so as to make it an effective tool for establishing the 
new international economic order and so that it resume the universal 
character which only the United Nations system could give it. If it was to 
be effective, the dialogue would have to be founded on the principles 
enunciated at the sixth special session and on the Charter of Economic s 
and Duties of States. It could then give a substantive content to the 
measures adopted by the United Nations system and supplement by practical 
results the debates that had taken place elsewhere, notably at the Paris 
Conference. 

30. The restructuring of international economic relations was an arduous 
task which could not be carried out by means of solutions or 
measures which would benefit only small groups of countries, when global 
solutions to the essential problems of the developing countries were 
sought. 

31. The machinery required to ensure continued dialogue should be desi 
to encourage the preparation of a new international development strategy, 
without thereby delaying the implementation of measures already decided upon. 
That should also to ensure the success of undertakings already 
planned within the United Nations system, such as the forthcoming of 
negotiations on the common fund for commodities, the ministerial 
of the Trade and Development Board which was to re-examine the of' 
indebtedrless, the Conference on Technical Co-operation among Developing 
Countries and the Conference on Science and Technology for Development, 
preparations for which should be speeded up. 

32. , there was no doubt that global would be greatly 
facilitated by strengthening the dialogue in progress at the regional and 
interregional levels, as in the case of the Europe-Arab and African-Arab 
negotiations, in which practical results had been achieved during the previous 
year. 

33. De the magnitude and complexit::i of the problems to be dealt with and 
the meagre results that had been attaine'l so far, opportunities would not be 

I . .. 



J\ /C. 2/ 'j:: ~~~n .. ~ ~ 
E:ng.L i. sh 
Page B 
(!~r. t·les i. iri, Tunisia ) 

J.ackiuc, t'or proving that Lhe long- sought unanimity on the need to establish a 
'""~'"' int erna.t ir.·nal economic order was not an illus i on . 

'34 . vlr. 'ULLSTillf ( Svred.crd :;aid that th : pursuit of a new equilibrium in 
i n : .(~ .·national relation :> had not r eal l y started and that the r esults of the 
Second De velopment Decade 'lere meagre . I nstead of l ooking towar ds the future, 
the developed countries we :~e increasingly preoccupied with t heir own current 
pr o!Jlems '.rhi ch, t he ugh com:>lex , were l ess urgent than those of the developing 
countril~~ , whe r e h ung.::r anti di sease still pr evailed. 

35. Only co-operation among Gove r nments Hould bring an end to economic 
r ecession and under·-devel opment, because t he means to e r adicate poverty , 
s tarvat;ion and disease exi:;ted. \-That was r equired was to convince decision­
makers in rich and poo·r c01mtries to work fo r world social justice by bringing 
about bette r di ;;; tribution of r esources a mong countries and , above all, bette r 
management of r esol.rrces . ':'o take but one example, the absurdity of devoting 
$350 billion t o mi 1i t ary e:cpendi ture and only one twentieth of that sum to 
development s hould end. 

36 . The devel oping world 11as progress i ng very unevenly. Some countries had 
achieved highe r gro~orth ratt!S than many industr ialized countr ies - in t he case 
of the OPEC countries, the rate had been 8. 3 per cent - while ot hers remained 
in abj ~ct poverty ; the gr o'rth r ate of the least devel oped countries was nil. 
That grow·i ng di spar ity was one of the f11ctors which must be taken into account 
in allocating aid. 

37 . The economic c r isis i n the industrial i <~.ed countri es had only made the 
situati on wor se, sinc e it ha d l ed some of those countrie::; to r educe their 
aid effort and 4<>ak~'- protec· ~ioni st rnt:asur es, -which in the long term could 
only pr ove ha r mful to all ·~oncerned. Increased aid would gener aLe an increase 
i n demand f or goods and se:~vices snppl ied o~ t ile :industrialized countri es, 
t.hus he1 pi ng them to recov<!r economically . In per i ods of r eces sion as of 
(2Xpansion, co-operation wa:; e s sential. t.fo.:.·<;ovr. r, all the major i ndustrialized 
countries mus t take par t i n t he effort that -was r equi red; it wa!> unacceptable 
t ha:t ;;o far only a few sma.l Jevel opcd coun Vries had attained the tar get for 
officinl development aid S<!t b~r the linited Nations - 0 . 7 per cent oi' GNP -
and that most d.onor countr:~es had been unable to guarantee stability in 
their flow of a i d to count:~ies and :inter national instituti ons. That a l so 
appli ed to the pl ann ed- economy countries of Eas t e rn Europe, -whose pe rformance 
vas dismaying . 11.11 mi.st b<! willing to assume the f inancia l r e sl'onsibility 
wh ich would make t he U:-~ite<l Nations , and particularly UNDP, the kind of efficient 
instrtnnc-nt of co-opera tion which it was meant to be . 

I . .. 



38. It was essential that devel aid ,,lhould rlovi i ~l 

and that the methods devised at the Paris Conference for hr 
systematic multiyear increase in aid 
rapidly applied. It ~oms encouraging t!1at some donor countries seemed 
take such action. On the other hanr1, it \vas a matter f\;r concern t 
agreement on the fifth of IDA had not become effective bc':'t 
of delays in the ratification pn:ef:dures of the donor eountr;y 
to say in that connexion that, in his Government's opinion, it was not 
appropriate for contributions to IDA to have unilateral restric:tions a-t;ta,cbed 
them. 

However, aid was nc.>t enough. 'The developing c:ountries must also be 
to mobilize their own resources. 'I'he establishment of a Common Fund for 
Commodities, as proposed by UJITCTAD, was vital in that regard. Such a fund 
would help to reduce excessive price fluctuations, slmr down inflatio:1 and 
enable the developing countries to stabilize their earnings. It \-roulf! also 
permit the financing of other relevant measures such as research ar:d 
development and trade promotic;n and diversification. Sweden 1rar~ -to 
give financial support to the Common Fund and to 
stabilizing measures through a soft-term arrangement des:i t,., 

shortfalls in the poorest countries' commodity export 

lta. Another crucial problem was the serious del;t lnirden of mar,y 
countries. The aggregate current-account deficit of non-,oil-exp,; 
developing countries was estimated at weJl c\'er ~100 llillion !'or t 
1971+-:i 977. Those countries had forced to .lL ~r·. 
borrowing from commercial as well as sources, -vrhicrc haii, 
noted, helped the rich countries during tl-1e recession. 

41. The burden of debt that 
countries from pursuing or important d 
in the long run disrupt the entire 5nternational 
'"as true that fin increa:::;e in the ordinary 1'e·~ourees 
Honetary Fund and tr1e \:forld Bank c''uld 
imbalances, it was also esseE :::.1 Lu work 
The UNCTAD minister ia.l et held in 

Hith that f l proposals made at the Penis C·,nferenc:e for 
it was clear that the indebb:e:L"less of tb 
to increase. In 1976, tbos countries' 

cnuntrie WC'll i 

had amounted 
billion, and per c:ent of their meag: 

debt service. Debt relief measures werr' -;; 

developing 
ects and could 

it 

.. ~:·'fl 'j :::-J.Jn(?e 

con·t~inue 

'"'urc tha~ 

His Government .:1i:d. been fo er of years that aid to tlte: 
poorest countries shonld take the forn' ,., r 
receive del1t relief, and it he.d nOiv dec i '··' 

.mts and that those count r:i es c;h, uJ '' 
tc take action. He 1vas cd to 

announce that his Government tc i authurization to vrr it 

I 



A/C . 2/32/SR.l3 
English 
Pae;e 10 

(Hr . Ullsten , Sweden) 

off all ODA debts owed to it by the poor est countries; that came to a total of 
$200 mill ion. Similar actior1 by all donor countries would bring about an increase 
of nearly 20 per cent in aid to the poorest countries and would mean forgoi ng a 
mere 0 . 02 per cent of t he rich countries ' GNP. 

43 . With regard to the question of trade, the GATT negotiations held o~t hope 
of liberalization, but liber~ .lization measures must be carried out by most of 
the industrialized countries since otherwise the burden for the countries which 
took such action would be toe heavy. If the developing countries wer e to benefit 
from trade liberalization, t t.e developed countries would have to help them to 
increase t heir industrial pr c·duction and l essen their economic dependence. The 
private sector could also pl~: .y a part in that r egard, but investment must be on 
terms t hat were acceptable tc• the host country and must hel p to promote i ts 
development through the creation of appropriate local technologies . A close 
watch should therefor e be kei·t on the operations of multinational and other 
corporations in the developir .g countries . 

44. The question of industrjalization in the developing countries was closely 
connected with the industria] structure of the developed countries . The 
latter countries should seek to ensure a better international division of labour , 
as his Government had been dcing since the late 1800s . The need for r estructuring 
was now more urgent because cf the pressures being exe rted on the export market by 
the developing cou.n.tries . Tl.e problem should not be dealt with through 
protectionist measures but by pursuing an active nationd.l industrial and labour 
market policy . His Gove rnmert's position did not imply support for attempts to 
create a centrally planned economy . Sweden remained convinced of the 
efficiency and basic utility of the f r ee-trade principle even though it sometimes 
found itself obliged to depart from that principle . 

45 . His enumeration of the essenti al feat ures of the development process would 
be incomplete without a refer·ence t o the basic role of energy . A great many 
developing countries lacked ~ufficient energy resour ces and were fo r ced to import 
energy at an increasing finarcial sacrifice. The United Nations had an important 
r ole to play in conserving erergy and developing new energy sources for t he 
benefit of both the developirg and the devel oped countries . 

46 . Some of those measures .,·ould r equire sacrifices. but in the l ong run they 
would benefit everyone . Development planning must be accompanied by a policy 
des i gned to reduce unemployment and to achieve a more equitabl e distribution 
of income . His Government ae:reed with the President o f the World Bank that 
the f irst requirement for meeting the needs of the poorest countries was to 
enable them to earn sufficiert income to acquir e essential goods, after whic h 

I ... 



A/C.2/32/SR.l3 
English 
Page ll 

they should be provided with the entire infrastructure that they needed. Since 
economic growth was one of the basic prerequisites for development, there 
could be no question of imposing restrictions on those types of production 
in the developing countries which satisfied basic needs. Indeed, even the 
production of export-oriented goods could make it easier for a particular 
country to satisfy its needs through imports. 

47. It was essential to apply the concept of collective self-reliance which 
had emerged recently so as to enable the developing countries to lessen their 
dependence on the rich countries and to use their resources for their own 
development. The Conference on Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries 
had a vital role to play in that regard. 

48. It was, however 9 for each State to find the development method and 
strategy that best suited it, regardless of its political system. What was 
important was a genuine adherence to a common aim, for only if that existed could 
external aid have any value. 

49. The United Nations, and more specifically the General Assembly and the 
Economic and Social Council, must produce solutions which would enable all 
members of the international community to come to grips with their increasing 
economic interdependence. If they were left to their own devices, most of 
them would find themselves unable to master their problems. 

50. Mr. SHEMIRANI (Iran) said that the Committee was meeting at a crucial 
juncture after three years of severe fluctuations and uncertainty in the world 
economy. Despite the grim prospects for the world economy during the 1970s, 
the special sessions of the General Assembly had aroused great hope. The 
developing countries, which had long suffered from the injustices and 
inequalities of the prevailing economic order, had believed that the economic 
order created after the Second World War was coming to an end and that an 
urgently needed new order was to be established. 

51. It was true that the short-term problems of the industrial countries and 
even, to some extent, of certain developing countries had eased, for the 
industrial countries had overcome the recession and were again experiencing 
vigorous growth while the developing countries had, through increased 
bilateral aid and multilateral financing facilities, partially remedied 
their balance-of-payments deficits. Nevertheless, the developing countries 
were lagging far behind the industrial countries. Moreover, the international 
monetary system was beset by uncertainty and the exchange rate fluctuations 
caused by the breakdown of the par-value system had adversely affected 
international trade and capital transactions. The persistence of those short­
term problems further strengthened the contention that long-term structural 
changes were required. 



A/C.2/32/SR.l3 
English 
Page 12 

(pr. Shemirani~ Iran) 

52. In the past three yearo:, a number of attempts had been made to deal with the 
basic problems of the developing countries, but in the opinion of his delegation 
they had been largely unsuccessful. The fourth session of UNCTAD had failed to 
meet the expectations of thE: third world on many substantive issues, particularly 
those relating to protection of the developing countries' purchasing power and an 
easing of their burden of indebtedness. In addition, the decisions taken at 
Nairobi had yet to be implemented. Thus, the negotiations on the Integrated 
Programme for Commodities m1d on the Common Fund, which was to be the Programme's 
main source of financing, hfcd remained inconclusive. 

53. The Paris Conference on International Economic Co-operation, lvhich had had the 
task of dealing with virtuaJly all the economic issues separating the rich North 
from the poor South, had met. certain demands of the developing countries but had 
fallen far short of their expectations for a structural change in the world economic 
order. Negotiations on debt. problems in particular had failed to bring the expected 
relief, and the issue would have to be taken up at the ministerial meeting of the 
UNCTAD Board in the near future. 

54. The recent resumed thirty-first session of the General Assembly had concluded 
without reaching any agreement on the basis of the proposals put forward by the 
Group of 77. His delegation regretted those failures all the more because the 
developing countries had participated in all the negotiations in a spirit of 
goodwill and co-operation. Moreover, certain new and disturbing trends were 
emerging on the international economic scene, such as growing protectionist 
sentiment and reductions in capital investment in some industrial countries, which 
could not but have an adven:e effect on the long-term prospects of the world 
economy and on the developing countries in particular. 

55. He noted that, three years after the adoption of the Declaration on the 
Establishment of a New International Economic Order, its objectives were still far 
from being realized. Some developed countries had hindered the dialogue by their 
intransigence, and most othE!rS had failed to honour their international 
commitments. In fact, less than half of the official development aid target of 
0.7 per cent of gross national product set by the International Development 
Strategy had been met by thE: developed countries. In many cases, there had been a 
constant decline in relation to GNP, and that was expected to continue. On the 
other hand, the oil-exporting countries, though not spared the effects of the 
economic upheavals within the industrialized world, had contributed ~bot:.t 2.6 per cent 
of their combined GNP for ;}evelopment aid. The resources of the OPEC Special Fund, 
which had been established i, ,vo years before, had recently been increased from 
$800 million to $1.6 billiu?l.. Iran 1 s total aid to the developing countries through 
the Special Fund had reacb~d $42!J million, which made his country the leading 
contributor to the Fund. ln 1974, when the combined GNP of the countries of the 
Development Assistance Comm:.ttee had been almost 19 times as large as that of the 
OPEC countries, their concef;sional aid to the developing countries had been only 
roughly twice that granted lJy the OPEC cot:.ntries. It went without saying that the 
latter had increased their <:ontribution still further since 1974. 

56. It was essential at the present stage that there should be a readiness to 
continue the dialogue. The developed countries had again expressed that 

I ... 



A/C. 2/ .13 
English 

13 

willingness at the resumed session of the General As It vms iP 

be hoped that they would in fact show the courage to accept the necessary 
sacrifices involved in truly tr"e structure of the cwrld economy. As for 
the countries, they had made it known in tLr:: Declaration by t:1e 
Hinisters for Foreign Af 1 airs of the Group of 77 at their first meet that they 
wished to continue, within c time-frames and within the frarnework of the 
United ~lations system, the process of meaningful on the basis of the 
princ and objectives of the Declaration and of Action on the 
Establishment of a New International Economic Order. The speci·--'~ session of the 
General As planned for would provide an opportunity to make an 
assessment of the progress made in that regard. 

57. 

58. (Democratic Yemen) recalled that a er of a century ac;o most 
countries had been fighting an age-old colonial system ln 

order to create a new political order. Today, those sac"'lle cc;,•-':.ries were inc 
against another form of colonialism in order to establish a !L;.T international 
economic order which would enable them to exercise full sovereir::j over their 
natural resources and over their economic activities as a whole. '!'heir efforts 
were not, however, always crowned with success, as the glaring fa ' .1re of the Paris 
Conference on International Economic Co-operation had shown. 

59. At the resumed thirty-first session of the General Assembly" the countries 
belonging to the Group of 77 had expressed their at that failure~ while at 
the same time proclaiming their firm determination to pursue their concerted efforts 
despite the difficulties they were encountering. In their Declaration, the 
Ministers for Foreign Affairs of the Group of 77 had emphasized the created 
for the countries the present economic order, which only served to 
vriden the gap separating them from the developed countries. The fundamental 
problems defined in the Declaration on the Establishment of a New 
International Economic Order had remained unchanged, for no practical measures had 
been taken to solve them. The inequality in the terms of trade and in the 
international division of labour, the reduction in earnings, the chronic 
balance-of-payments imbalance and growing indebtedness of the developing countries 
continued to prevent them from attaining the goals had set themselves. It was 
a matter of the utmost urgency to take the necessary steps to enable those countries 
to benefit from their own resources, to diversify their economies and to 
industrialize. It was also to set up the Common Fund of the Integrated 
Programme for Commodities and to put the International Fund for Agricultural 
Development into operation so that the peoples of the third world would no longer 
be haunted the spectre of and malnutrition. 

60. As the Ministers for Affairs of the of 77 had stressed) a 
restructuring of the international economic system and accelerated) sustained 
development of the developing countries were in the interests of the international 
community as a whole. The countries should therefore display the 
necessary ical will to ensure that all the efforts Hade in that field did not 
end in deadlock, as had at the Paris Conference. He also wished to stress 



A/C.2/32/SR. 
English 
Page 14 

the point nade by the Group of 77 that all world-wide negotiations on the 
establishment of a new international economic order should take place within the 
United nations system, which was the only appropriate and fully representative 
forum for that purpose. Guidelines would have to be laid down for the conduct of 
those ions so that concrete~ positive results could be achieved within a 
reasonable period of time. 

61. It would also be appropriate to review the International Development 
for the Second United Nations Development Decade, since it no longer corresponded 
to the real needs of the countries, which were continuing to suffer the 
consequences of an unfair eco:10mic system and the repercussions of the that 
were the capitalist WJrld. Although some third world countries were 
relatively prosperous, most of them, particularly the least developed, continued to 
suffer as much deprivation as ever as a result of inheriting colonial economic 
structures which were unsuitei to their needs and their capabilities. 

62. An increase in annual income was not in itself a sign of progress 
since it had already been demJnstrated repeatedly that growth was not necessarily 
a synonym for development. FJr that reason, development had to be redefined and its 
objectives set. His delegati:m was convinced that real development was solubly 
linked to the transformation 8f economic and social structures and to a radical 
change in international economic relations. 

63. It was essential that the developing countries should co-operate among 
themselves in achieving "collective self-reliance" - a concept to which increas 
importance was being attached. Collective self-reliance was one of the foundation 
stones of the new economic order sought by the developing countries, and the 
developed countries and international organizations had a duty to help them in 
every way to achieve it. In that context, his Government attached great importance 
to co-operation among the Arab countries, particularly within the framework of the 
Economic Commission for vlestern Asia, and it was convinced that the office to be 
opened by U:NDP in that region i·rould play an extremely role. It 
great hopes in the Conference on Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries 
which was to be held in Argentina. 

64. His country, which would shortly be celebrating the tenth anniversary of its 
independence, was passing thr8ugh a of radical economic and social change. 
The process of change was not oc without difficulties in such a small 
country, which was among the least advanced and the most affected by the crisis and 
whose resources were limited and under-exploited. However, by proceeding on the 
basis of planning and by with friendly countries and 
international organizations, Democratic Yemen had embarked upon the path of 
harmonious, comprehensive development which would guarantee its people the full 
exercise of national scvereignty. Accordingly, it could not accept the 
principle of co-operation in conditions of inequality and exploitation which 

I . .. 



certain countries hcped to 
dissociated from politics. 
was the establishment of a 

maintain by proposing that economics 
The only guarantee of international 

new and equitable economic order. 

A/C.2/32/SR.l3 
English 
Page 15 

should be 
peace and security 

65. Jv".u. VINCI (Italy) said that it was now more urgent than ever to take action 
at the international level to eliminate poverty and promote economic and social 
development and human dignity; Governments were aware of their growing 
responsibilities in that regard. The current world economic crisis and the 
difficult situation being experienced by the industrialized and developing 
countries alike could affect the good relations between Member States and, 
consequently, the work of the United Nations. 

66. The current problems were actually part of a whole whose separate elements 
could be studied and dealt with separately but must be approached in a spirit of 
co-operation and co-ordination. For that reason, his delegation had advocated the 
adoption of a global strategy for peace which would embrace all problems ·· 
political, economic, military, social and ln mani tarian - and would involve all 
countries, individually and collectively. Initially, there would need to be 
agreement on general guidelines to be followed in dealing with the major problems, 
some of which went beyond the scope of the work of the Committee but should be 
kept in mind in its deliberations. In other words, the Committee should always 
have a clear view of the interdependence of those problems and should take care 
that measures adopted by the United Nations system or other bodies were correct 
in substance and timing so as not to produce negative effects from which all ilOuld 
suffer. 

67. 'The present moment seemed particularly favourable for serious and constructive 
action, since there now existed an unprecedented convergence of views on the 
evaluation of the world economic situation and on the objectives to be pursued. 
His delegation therefore believed that the fundamental problems could be solved and 
that it would be possible through joint efforts, to satisfy basic needs and improve 
the living standard of the majority of the world's population. 

68. Despite its limited progress, the Paris Conference on International Economic 
Co-operation had contributed to a better understanding of the problems under 
consideration and had confirmed the common willingness to continue the dialogue 
looking to the establishment of a more equitable new international economic order. 
In that connexion, his delegation stressed the indivisibility of prosperity and 
progress, whose realization required close, continuous co-operation between all 
countries. No State was in a position to disregard the needs of other States in 
view of the interdependence of all States with regard to economic development. 

69. His delegation felt that the world economic situation reflected an imbalance 
of positive and negative aspects. Inflationary pressure had been reduced, but 
unemployment and idle plant capacity remained very high and investments were not 
at the necessary level. The gap was widening between a small group of higher­
income developing countries and the much larger group of poor developing countries. 

I ... 



(dr. 

\~bile the first of those grc ups had been able to overcome the recession, 
development efforts in the c,ther group had suffered a severe setback. Furthermore, 
although the oil~exporting countries had surpluses in their balance of payments, 
1-rhich would continue to be the case beyond 1980, many third world countries and the 
weaker industrialized countries continued to have large deficits and to accumulate 
debts. All those fundamentE.l factors should te taken into account in the 
formulation of a new intern~:.tional development strategy for the 1980s. 

70. His ion felt that the international development strategy was a useful 
tool for promot development and evaluating the progress achieved. Its short-
comings should be borne in rrind when formulating a new strategy, which should take 
into account, firstly, the differing levels of development and economic and social 
needs of various countries, with particular attention to the needs of the least 
developed countries, and, secondly, the need to ensure more equitable participation 
c)f all peoples in the development process. It was clear that all relevant decisions 
taken in the meantime within the United Nations system, particularly those adopted 
at the sixth and seventh special sessions of the General Assembly and at various 
international conferences, should be incorporated into the new strategy. 

His delegation reiterated that the international community should seek to 
concentrate the aain thrust 8f its assistance on the poorest people and, in 
particular, on the developme:1t of rural areas, where most of them lived. An effort 
should be made to increase a1d diversify food production and world food stocks and 
to nutrition. In th:1t context, delegation welcomed the establishment 
of the International Fund for Agricultural Development and hoped that that 
i::nportant tool would make it possible to assist the developing coDJ.tries in solving 
their food and agricultural :_Jroblems. His delegation stressed that, despite the 
agreem.ent reached at the Par is Conference on the Common Fund, the main organ of the 
Integrated Progr&~e for Comrrodities, many problems regarding the exact nature 
and function of the Fund rem:1ined unsolved. His delegation therefore looked 
forward to the next round of negotiations on the Integrated Programme to be held 
in Geneva in November and De::ember. 

72. Ilis delegation felt tha·~ intensive consultations should also be held on the 
probleTI of the indebtedness ·)f the developing countries and that new efforts should 
be made to improve the functtoning of the international economic system and 
increase the participation o.r:' the developing countries in de:cision-making at the 
international level. In tha·~ connexion, his Government believed that the growing 
trend tovards protectionism ,jeopardized co-operation between industrialized and 
developing countries, and, fl)r its part, it avoided resorting to such measures. 

He stressed the importance, within the framework of establishing a new 
international economic order, of co-operation in the matter of energy. It was 
inportant to ensure that all countries, in particular the developing countries, ·,.;ere 
sufficiently supplied with energy to sati the needs of accelerated economic 

I . .. 



A/C.2/32/SR.l3 

Page 17 
(Mr. Vinci, Italy) 

growth. To that end it would be appropriate not only to develop traditional energy 
sources but also to adopt energy conservation measures at the national and 
international levels and study alternate sources. That would require the 
strengthening of international solidarity and co-operation in the technical and 
financial areas; otherwise, the economic crisis and unemployment would be further 
aggravated, with serious consequences for all countries. His delegation therefore 
agreed with the Secretary-General on the need to continue a dialogue on the 
energy problem between all States concerned. His delegation, like others, 
supported the Secretary-General's proposal to establish within the United Nations 
system an institute for energy entrusted with the task of promoting international 
co--operation in that field, and his delegation was willing to study the proposal 
as soon as possible. It felt, moreover, that the United Nations system was the 
most competent and representative forum for studying the complex and universal 
problems in that area, which were clos linked with the establishment of a new 
international economic order. 

74. Institutional follow-up to HABITAT: United Nations Conference on Human 
Settlements merited further attention. His delegation hoped that the General 
Assembly could reach a consensus on the matter at the thirty-second session. 
In that connexion, he observed that the proliferation of United Nations bodies 
should be avoided and rational use made of the existing structure. His delegation 
also felt that the natural and man-made environments could not be separated and 
that action in the environmental and human settlements fields should be 
co-ordinated. For that reason, matters relating to human settlements should be 
entrusted to the Governing Council of the United Nations Environment Programme. 
A secretariat could be established at UNEP headquarters with responsibility for 
human settlements and with the same status as Ul~EP but smaller, since most human 
settlements activities would be carried out by the regional comraissions. The 
ill1EP secretariat and the new secretariat, with which the United Nations Habitat 
and Human Settlements Foundation would merge, would both be headed by deputy 
executive directors who would report to the Executive Director of UNEP. In the 
hope that those proposals might facilitate a solution of the institutional 
problems, his delegation intended to circulate a note on the subject to all 
delegations and was now preparing a preliminary draft resolution. 

75, His delegation noted that the Committee was called upon to examine, under 
agenda item 12, a draft resolution on the Transport and Communications Decade in 
Africa. His Government fully supported that initiative and hoped to contribute 
to the success of the Decade; an Italian research institute had already published 
a study on an integrate] system of transport in Africa and was ready to proceed 
with more detailed elaboration of the project. 

76. Vlith regard to the work of the Ad Hoc Committee on the Restructuring of the 
Economic and Social Sectors of the United Nations System, he stressed that, 
despite points of agreement, numerous problems rer,1ained unsolved. His country 
was interested in co-operating, to the best of its ability, in the search for a 
solution to those problems. His delegation believed that decisions must be taken 
promptly, for the present uncertainty could not continue without negative effects 
on the >-rork of tlJe entire system. It was, however, essential to avoid drawing 

I . .. 



.13 

Page 18 

hasty conclusions and adop- solutions which l!li jeopardize the of 
action of the Organization. In view of the interdependence of all economic and 
political problems, they should be solved globally under a single effective 
leadership. 

77. Mr. BAUCHARD (France) \velcomed the delegations of the Socialist c of 
Viet Nam and the Republic 1)f Djibouti and said that the French Government had 
decided to strengthen its of friendship and co-operation 1-Tith those 
two 

78. The current economic .md financial difficulties affected all countries, 
whatever their economic sy::;tem. Although the analysis of the causes might differ, 
the universal nature of th·~ economic crisis was obvious, as the ministers had 
noted at the Annual Heetin,:s of the Boards of Governors of D'l.F and the World Bank. 
In the developed countries, the unemployment rate remained very high and the 
slowing down of inflation :Ln fact concealed important differences in situations. 
In the developing countrie:>, those two elements were felt all the more 
because the econol!lic struc-:;ures were more fragile: the inflation rate was even 
higher in those countries :md balance-of.:..payments deficits were considerable. 
Of course, in 1976, the gr•)Wth rate of the developing countries ( 4. 7 per cent) 
had been higher than that ·)f the industrialized countries, but it still did not 
attain the target set by t:1e International Development Strategy for the period 
1971-1980 ( 6 per cent per ;mnum) and in fact concealed substantial disparities .. 

79. The universality of t~1e is was not surprising in view of the 
interdependence of economi~s; that interdependence, however, constituted 
and mutually profitable pr•)gress which should be fostered. The industrialized 
countries had seen their t::-ade with the developing countries grow at a 
rate. The latter sent them not only raw materials and unfinished products but 
also a proportion •)f manufactured goods. That increase in trade, lvhich 
vould continue to be inten:lified in future years, to explain the 
sensitivity of the developtng countries to the general economic situation. 

80. In the light of that iifficult situation, his considered that, 
firstly, each country shou.Ld contrib;ute, through appropriate short- and long-term 
domestic cies, to rest1bili its economy and supporting world demand. 
That was the policy consta1tly pursued by the French Government. It was also 
desirable that countries with a favourable balance-of-payments situation should 
contribute actively to the encouragement of world economic growth and the 
reduction of imbalances in international payments. 

81. Secondly, it was important not to yield to the temptation of adopting 
protectionist measures whi::h, if they became general, could not fail to lead to 
economic regression and wo~ld run counter to all the efforts made for many years, 
especially GATT. In th1t connexion, his delegation that the trade 
negotiations taking place g,t Geneva 1-rould be vigorously pursued. 

82. , the French d considered that the growth of developing 
countries could not but co:1solidate international recovery, because those 

/ ... 



A/C.2/32/SR.l3 
English 
Page 19 

{Mr. Bauchard, France) 

countries represented an increasing proportion of world demand. The industrialize1 
countries had realized that they could not solve their own economic problems unless 
those of the developing countries were also solved. Moreover, the establishment 
of a more just and equitable new international economic order required that the 
developing countries should be given the means of participating more actively in 
economic growth. That was why the French Government had been determined to 
maintain its development aid at a level, despite its difficult situation. 

The Paris Conference on International Economic Co-operation had been able to 
achieve a convergence of points of view and s ficant progress on a number of 
questions. With regard to official development assistance, for instance, specific, 
detailed commitments had been made concerning the need to improve the terms of aid 
and to increase its volume, particularly in cases where the results so far obtained 
had been disappointing. France was nearing the target set because its official 
development assistance had been 0.63 per cent of its gross national product in 1976. 
It hoped that the donor countries farthest away from the target of 0.7 per cent and 
particularly those with the highest per capita income would also try to move closer 
to it, which would make it possible both to increase the volume of aid and to share 
the cemmon effort more equitably. Intensification of aid was a priority for the 
French Government. Although it realized that development aid should contribute to 
the satisfaction of essential needs, it thought that it was for the recipient 
Governments to judge those needs and direct the aid accordingly. 

84. Eis icn welccmed the special measures upcn at the Paris 
Conference to help the least favoured countries. The European Economic Community 
would make an important contribution and that aid would supplement the bilateral 
and multilateral prograrr®es, which should increase considerably. 

85. Lastly, with regard to raw materials, the participants at the Paris 
Conference had agreed on the need to stabilize prices and to create a joint fund 
for that purpose. The French Government, which had always advocated the 
organization of raw materials narkets, considered that to be the most important 
achievement of that Conference and noted r,.;ith satisfacti.on that the reservations 
expressed by some countries on UJIJCTAD resolution 93 (IV) had been lifted. It was 
ready to contribute to working out the means of that decision, 
particularly during the negotiations soon to be held by UNCTAD. 

86. Even if agreement had not been reached on all points, the Paris Conference 
had shown that a dialogue between developed and developing countries was possible, 
especially with regard to energy. Of course, not all countries had been present 
but its results constituted a basis for discussion open to all and the socialist 
countries were also free to decide whether or not to play their part. France 
was ready to play a constructive part in pursuing the dialogue inside the United 
Nations system or in any other appropriate forum. 

87. The French delegation was pleased t·at the oil-exporting countries had 
increased their assistance to developing ,·,;untries, which had to a certain extent 
become an institution. It would be usefuJ if the States members of the 
Development Assistance Committee and the ci1-exporting countries could work 
together to make their accounting systems +'or aid compatible and possibly to 

/ ... 



A/C.2/32/SR.l3 
English 

20 

(Mr. Bauchard, France) 

co-ordinate their respective assistance better. France and certain oil-exporting 
countries had already been able to organize joint financing in specific sectors. 
His delegation noted with satisfaction that the development of oil facilities 
had also enabled IMF to help its member countries to overcome their problems in 
readjusting their balance cf payments. It also welcomed the increase in the 
resources of the World Bank and the International Development Association, which 
should grant an adequate proportion of their assistance to the poorest countries. 
It was certainly desirable that the Bank should increase its action to develop 
energy resources. 

88. 'I'he French delegation considered that the International Fund for Agricultural 
Development should become C•perational as soon as possible. It also emphasized 
the importance of technical co-operation among developing countries. Such 
co-operation was a major fE.ctor in economic, technical and social progress and 
constituted a new tow~,rds the economic self-sufficiency of developing 
countries. The des to integrate such co-operation into the over-all 
development objective was particularly interesting. His delegation had always 
thought that technical co-c)peration among developing countries was an element 
of international technical co-operation and that the United Nations system should 
encourage it in order to ensure the participation of all countries in joint 
development efforts. 

All those encouraging factors were interdependent and should be incorporated 
in the new international development strategy for the Third United Nations 
Development Decade, ~<rhich 1ras to work out for joint action to restructure 
international economic relations. 

90. In conclusion, the FrE;nch delegation reminded the Committee that the aim of 
its r,wrk was the establishJaent of a more just and equitable new international 
economic order and that it should use pragmatic methods. The new international 
economic order could be achieved only by tackling problems, one after the other, 
in a spirit of dialogue and co-operation, by deciding on the essential priority 
sectors concerning which there should be serious, practical negotiations in order 
to reach joint solutions. 

'rhe meeting rose at l. 30 p.m. 




